72933-1 72933-1

COA NO. 72933-1-I

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHING DIVISION ONE	GTON
STATE OF WASHINGTON, Respondent, v. ELYAS KEROW, Appellant.	FILED Jun 25, 2015 Court of Appeals Division I State of Washington
ON APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON FOR KING COUNTY The Honorable Theresa B. Doyle, Judge BRIEF OF APPELLANT	
CASEY GI Attorney for A	

NIELSEN, BROMAN & KOCH, PLLC 1908 East Madison Seattle, WA 98122 (206) 623-2373

A. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- 1. The court erred in imposing restitution beyond the statutory 180-day time limit, in violation of RCW 9.94A.753(1). CP 28-29.
- 2. The court erred in denying appellant's motion to strike the State's restitution request as beyond the 180-day deadline. CP 67.
- 3. The court erred in relying on an unpublished Court of Appeals decision.

Issues Pertaining to Assignments of Error

- 1. Whether the trial court lacked statutory authority to enter the restitution order beyond the 180-day deadline under RCW 9.94A.753(1) in the absence of good cause?
- 2. Whether the court erred in allowing the State to cite an unpublished Court of Appeals decision as authority and in relying on that unpublished decision to uphold the restitution order?

B. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Elyas Kerow pled guilty to one count of second degree vehicle prowling. CP 8-23. The factual basis for the plea was that he "unlawfully entered Brett Braaten's car intending to commit a crime against property

therein." CP 15. On May 16, 2014, the court imposed a deferred sentence. CP 24-26; 1RP¹ 4-8. Restitution was to be determined. CP 25.

The State later sought \$1000 in restitution for Braaten and \$3,641.71 for the insurance company, USAA. CP 34. The State filed documentation for the upcoming restitution hearing. CP 33-64. The documentation included a victim loss statement signed by Ms. Braaten, in which she represented that the total amount of loss or damage consisted of a repair for \$1428. CP 35. Braaten's loss statement further indicated the loss was submitted to her insurance company. CP 35. USAA insurance paid a total of \$4058. CP 35. There was a \$1000 deductible on the policy. CP 35.

The State's documentation from USAA named the policyholder as Austin Wolff and requested a check be made payable to USAA as subrogee of Wolff. CP 36. Wolff is named as the owner of the vehicle. CP 40, 46, 51. USAA paid \$4,065.48 on the property damage claim. CP 36. There were some additional costs for towing, storage, and auction. CP 36. USAA received \$1000 from the salvage of the totaled vehicle, leaving \$3,641.71 in costs. CP 36.

¹ The verbatim report of proceedings is referenced as follows: 1RP 5/16/14; 2RP - 10/29/14; 3RP - 11/18/14; 4RP - 12/3/14.

On October 29, 2014, the restitution hearing took place. 2RP 4-10. The court asked defense counsel if she had any argument. 2RP 5. Counsel noted Braaten was the victim and USAA provided a very complete packet of information for payments to Wolff. 2RP 5. But counsel also pointed out Wolff was not mentioned anywhere in the police report and was not a victim in this case. 2RP 5. There was no indication in the documentation that Braaten was "out of \$1000." 2RP 6. The USAA paperwork did not mention Braaten at all. 2RP 6. There was no showing of a connection between Wolff and Braaten.² 2RP 7.

The State interjected "I do have to ask how that's relevant when we have an order setting restitution[.]" 2RP 7. The court responded, "Well, I haven't signed it, though. That's the thing." 2RP 7.

The State argued the paperwork had the right claim number and the right date of loss involving the same vehicle.³ 2RP 7-8. The court said it was clear that the insurance company information was correct in that it paid \$3,641.71. 2RP 8. The court asked if counsel disputed this. 2RP 8. Counsel did not. 2RP 8. The question for the court was why

² Counsel further argued it was unclear where Braaten got the amount of \$1,428 in repair costs, as the car was totaled. 2RP 6.

³ Defense counsel pointed out the claim policy number on the victim loss statement has four additional digits compared to the number listed in the USAA paperwork. 2RP 7.

Braaten was entitled to the \$1000 deductible when "everything else shows Wolff" was the policyholder. 2RP 8.

The State suggested Braaten was likely insured under the policy. 2RP 8. Defense counsel represented that Braaten was the registered owner of the car according to police reports. 2RP 8. The court said it had not seen the police report. 2RP 8. The State reiterated its belief that Braaten was covered by the policy because the date of loss, the claim number, and the car were the same. 2RP 9.

The court wondered why money was going to Braaten if she did not own the car. 2RP 9.⁴ The State said Braaten paid the deductible. 2RP 9. The court countered that Wolff was the owner of the car. 2RP 9-10. The State said, "Well, I believe Ms. Braaten was the registered owner of the vehicle." 2RP 10. The court responded, "the State needs to present something showing a connection between Braaten and Wolff." 2RP 10. The court continued: "I'm reviewing everything pretty carefully. The bar is fairly low on this, but there's got to be something. Okay. So go ahead and set it over to a date that you both agree on. And that's that." 2RP 10. The restitution hearing was continued to a future date, unspecified on the record. CP 65. The court did not enter a written order of continuance. Id.

⁴ The transcript has the court referring to "him" and "he" at this point, but the context makes clear that the court was referring to Braaten.

The parties returned to court on November 18, 2014, at which time the State presented an email from Braaten explaining that Wolff is her father but that she was responsible for paying the deductible. 3RP 4-6; CP 75. The court noted Wolff is the policyholder. 3RP 6.

Defense counsel interjected, arguing the court lacked jurisdiction to set restitution because more than 180 days had passed since sentencing. 3RP 6. November 12 was the 180th day. 3RP 6, 10. There was no previous finding of good cause to continue the case past the 180-day deadline. 3RP 8-9. The court requested to see the order continuing the case, and then figured out there was none. 3RP 9, 11. The court continued the case again so that the State could research the issue of whether the court lost jurisdiction because the matter, while originally scheduled within the 180-day period, was "continued beyond the 180 days without a finding of good cause." 3RP 11.

At a December 3, 2014 hearing, the parties argued the issue. 4RP 4-20. The State, citing an unpublished case from the Court of Appeals, claimed that there was sufficient information to establish a causal connection between the insurance claim and the damaged car at the October 29 restitution hearing, and that the court continued the case simply to clarify the relationship between Braaten and Wolff. 4RP 8-12. According to the State, the unpublished case it relied on distinguished

between "clarification and needing additional evidence that the State didn't initially provide." 4RP 13. The State also argued defense counsel waived the issue by not objecting to the November 18 continuance date, accusing counsel of gamesmanship. 4RP 11, 13.

Defense counsel responded that he understood the State's frustration at picking a date beyond the 180-day period, but that its accusation of gamesmanship was inaccurate. 4RP 16. The court said it did not agree with the State's position on that point. 4RP 16.

Defense counsel distinguished the unpublished case cited by the State, arguing there was insufficient information to "tie Braaten to this car" so as to establish why she was entitled to restitution at the original hearing. 4RP 15-16. Additionally, there was good cause to continue in the unpublished case, whereas the court in Kerow's case never found good cause to continue. 4RP 14.

Faced with the unpublished decision cited by the State, the court reframed the legal issue before it: "whether the Court had sufficient information in the record at the hearing that was within the 180 days to, um, find that there was a causal connection with [Braaten] and the – the crime that Mr. Kerow committed." 4RP 16-17. The court commented that Kerow's case sounded like the unpublished case "where it's clarification."

4RP 17. The court said it would bone up on the case law and then enter an order on the matter. 4RP 19.

On December 13, 2014, the court entered an order setting restitution in the amount of \$1000 for Braaten and \$3,641.71 for USAA. CP 28-29. On that that same date, the court entered the following order on Kerow's motion: "the court continued the hearing from 10/29/14, within 180 days of sentencing, to 11/18/14, for clarification of the relationship between Mr. Braaten, the victim in the case, and Mr. Wolff, the claimant under the policy covering the damaged vehicle. The court sought clarification of their relationship and continued the hearing for that reason. The State's evidence was sufficient at the 10/29/14 hearing." CP 67. Kerow appeals from the restitution order. CP 30-32.

C. ARGUMENT

1. THE COURT LACKED AUTHORITY TO ENTER RESTITUTION AFTER THE STATUTORY DEADLINE PASSED WITHOUT FINDING GOOD CAUSE FOR THE CONTINUANCE.

The trial court did not find good cause to continue the restitution hearing beyond the 180-day deadline mandated by statute. As a result of that failure, the court lacked statutory authority to determine restitution at a later date. The restitution order must be vacated. CP 28-29.

a. As a threshold matter, the State improperly cited an unpublished decision, and the trial court improperly relied upon it.

It is improper for a party to cite an unpublished decision to the trial court and it is error for the trial court to rely on it. <u>Johnson v. Allstate Ins.</u>

<u>Co.</u>, 126 Wn. App. 510, 519, 108 P.3d 1273 (2005). The trial prosecutor engaged in sanctionable conduct when it cited an unpublished decision of the Court of Appeals in support of its argument that restitution was timely. 4RP 10, 13; <u>Johnson</u>, 126 Wn. App. at 519.

The trial court, instead of sanctioning the trial prosecutor, embraced the unpublished decision in ruling restitution was timely. We know the court did so because the court orally commented that Kerow's case sounded like the unpublished case and its written order tracks the language and reasoning of the unpublished case. 4RP 17; CP 67. In response to the unpublished decision, the trial court reframed the relevant legal question from whether restitution could be ordered without a finding of good cause to continue past the 180-day deadline to whether the continuance was for purposes of clarification. Compare 3RP 11 with 4RP 16-17.

The State's improper conduct and the trial court's error put Kerow in an awkward position. "If one party cites an unpublished opinion, then in fairness the other party must be allowed to explain why the opinion is neither illustrative nor persuasive, creating a controversy that the appellate court will find difficult to resolve without citing the unpublished opinion."

Colley v. Peacehealth, 177 Wn. App. 717, 723, 312 P.3d 989 (2013). Kerow's trial counsel understandably felt compelled to address and distinguish the unpublished decision in arguing to the trial court. 4RP 14-16. On appeal, Kerow will not cite the unpublished decision at issue here. RAP 10.4(h) forbids it. And to explain why the unpublished decision lacks persuasive value would only encourage the practice of citing unpublished decisions as authority.

b. Without good cause for the continuance, the restitution order entered beyond the 180-day deadline is void.

The trial court's authority to impose restitution is statutory. State v. Johnson, 96 Wn. App. 813, 815, 981 P.2d 25 (1999). The court cannot exceed the authority granted under the controlling statute. Johnson, 96 Wn. App. at 815. A restitution order is void when statutory provisions are not followed. Id. Whether a trial court exceeded its statutory authority is an issue of law reviewed de novo. State v. Murray, 118 Wn. App. 518, 521, 77 P.3d 1188 (2003).

RCW 9.94A.753(1) provides in relevant part as follows:

When restitution is ordered, the court shall determine the amount of restitution due at the sentencing hearing or within one hundred eighty days except as provided in subsection (7) of this section. The court may continue the

hearing beyond the one hundred eighty days for good cause.⁵

"Under RCW 9.94A.753(1), a court ordering restitution must issue its order within 180 days of sentencing." State v. Gray, 174 Wn.2d 920, 925, 280 P.3d 1110 (2012). "The time limit is mandatory unless extended for good cause." Gray, 174 Wn.2d at 925 (citing State v. Krall, 125 Wn.2d 146, 148-49, 881 P.2d 1040 (1994)).

To render restitution timely, a trial court must make an express finding of good cause for continuing a restitution hearing beyond the 180th day before the 180th day has passed. State v. Grantham, 174 Wn. App. 399, 405-06, 299 P.3d 21 (2013) ("because the continuance of Grantham's restitution hearing on March 2 was not based on an express finding of good cause to hold it later than 180 days after sentencing, as RCW 9.94A.753(1) requires, the hearing was not timely and we must reverse and vacate the invalid restitution order."), review denied, 178 Wn.2d 1006, 308 P.3d 642 (2013).

At the October 29 restitution hearing, which took place before the 180-day deadline, the trial court did not make a finding of good cause to continue the restitution hearing. 2RP 10; CP 65. Under <u>Grantham</u>, the

⁵ Subsection (7) refers to mandatory restitution ordered after it has been determined the victim of a crime is entitled to benefits under the crime victims' compensation act. RCW 9.94A.753(7).

subsequent determination of restitution by order dated December 3 is invalid in the absence of that finding. CP 28-29; <u>Grantham</u>, 174 Wn. App. at 405-06.

180 days from sentencing was November 12. Under <u>Gray</u> and <u>Krall</u>, the restitution order must be entered before 180 days passes in the absence of good cause shown. <u>Gray</u>, 174 Wn.2d at 925; <u>Krall</u>, 125 Wn.2d at 148-49. Here, the trial court entered the restitution order well past the 180-day deadline. CP 28-29. The court's later explanation that it continued the hearing for "clarification" past the 180-day deadline does not change that fact. CP 67.

In ultimately ordering restitution, the trial court retroactively reasoned that it continued the hearing from October 29 to November 18 "for clarification of the relationship between Mr. [sic] Braaten, the victim in the case, and Mr. Wolff, the claimant under the policy covering the damaged vehicle." CP 67. The court's belated reasoning does not change the fact that it did not find good cause for the continuance from October 29 to November 18. It did not make an express finding of good cause to continue on October 29, before the 180-day deadline passed. Under Grantham, that failure by itself renders the restitution order untimely. Grantham, 174 Wn. App. at 405-06. Furthermore, the court did not even

make a retroactive finding of good cause in its December 3rd order explaining why it continued the case. CP 67.

Even if the court's December 3rd order could somehow be read as finding good cause for the earlier continuance, there is in fact no good cause shown. "Good cause requires a showing of some external impediment that did not result from a self-created hardship that would prevent a party from complying with statutory requirements." State v. Reed, 103 Wn. App. 261, 265 n.4, 12 P.3d 151 (2000). Inadvertence or attorney oversight does not establish good cause to extend the deadline. Johnson, 96 Wn. App. at 814, 817. The failure to obtain documentation in support of a restitution claim does not establish good cause for extension past the mandatory deadline. State v. Tetreault, 99 Wn. App. 435, 436-37, 998 P.2d 330, review denied, 141 Wn.2d 1015, 10 P.3d 1072 (2000). Further, the restitution statute "does not require that a defendant notify the State that he or she is challenging written documentation so that the State can have the opportunity to summon a witness or to get additional documentation to address his or her concerns." State v. Dedonado, 99 Wn. App. 251, 257, 991 P.2d 1216 (2000).

The trial court explained it continued the case for "clarification" of the relationship between Braaten and Wolff. CP 67. That is another way of saying the State did not provide evidence it needed to satisfy the court's concerns about whether the \$1000 insurance deductible request for Braaten was justified at the October 29 hearing. According to the documentation that the court had before it on October 29, Wolff was the owner of the vehicle; he was the policyholder and the one who was insured, not Braaten. CP 36, 40, 46, 51.

The trial court in its December 3rd order noted that it continued the October 29 restitution hearing on its own motion. CP 67. That does not matter. Good cause must exist to continue the restitution hearing past the 180-day deadline, regardless of whether it is the court or the State that is responsible for the continuance. There is nothing in the statute, or the case law interpreting the statute, that ascribes any significance to the distinction.

In its December 3 restitution order, the trial court stated, "The State's evidence was sufficient at the 10/29/14 hearing." CP 67. Kerow challenges the trial court's broad conclusion that the evidence was sufficient at the October 29 hearing. Evidence to support the claim that Braaten should receive \$1000 for an insurance deductible was insufficient because there was no evidence that she paid the deductible. The insurance documentation showed Wolff was the owner of the car and the policyholder. CP 36, 40, 46, 51. The State's later presentation of the email in November 2014 establishes that Braaten paid the deductible. CP

75. That documentation should have been presented before the 180-day deadline passed.

c. The issue is preserved for appeal.

Below, the State argued defense counsel waived the 180-day issue by not objecting to the November 18 continuance date. 4RP 11, 13. Defense counsel did not waive the issue for appeal. A challenge to the timeliness of the restitution determination may be raised for the first time on appeal. State v. Moen, 129 Wn.2d 535, 547-48, 919 P.2d 69 (1996); State v. Hennings, 129 Wn.2d 512, 519, 919 P.2d 580 (1996). It follows that defense counsel was under no obligation to object at any time to preserve the issue for appeal. Counsel could have stayed completely silent on the issue and Kerow would be able to raise the issue on appeal. The fact that counsel chose to raise the 180-day issue at the hearing that took place past the 180-day deadline is immaterial on the matter of issue preservation.

D. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

For the reasons set forth, Kerow requests the restitution order be vacated.

DATED this $\frac{7544}{1}$ day of June 2015

Respectfully Submitted,

NIELSEN, BROMAN & KOCH, PLLC.

CASEY GRANNIS WSBA No. 37601 Office ID No. 91051

Attorneys for Appellant