FILED Sep 28, 2015 Court of Appeals Division I State of Washington

NO. 72933-1-I

COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION I

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

۷.

ELYAS KEROW,

Appellant.

APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR KING COUNTY

THE HONORABLE THERESA B. DOYLE, JUDGE

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

DANIEL T. SATTERBERG King County Prosecuting Attorney

> PHILIP SANCHEZ Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Attorneys for Respondent

King County Prosecuting Attorney W554 King County Courthouse 516 3rd Avenue Seattle, Washington 98104 (206) 477-9497

A. ISSUES PRESENTED

Whether Kerow invited error as to the timeliness of a restitution determination where the prosecution timely petitioned the court for restitution, the court had all information necessary to make its decision, but where the hearing was delayed at to a date Kerow specifically requested; a date that was beyond the 180-day limit imposed by statute.

B. <u>STATEMENT OF THE CASE</u>

Elyas Kerow was charged by information with Possession of a Stolen Vehicle after he was caught running from a car which had been stolen and appeared stripped. CP 1, 18. The State alleged that Elyas Kerow did knowingly receive, retain, possess, conceal and dispose of a stolen car belonging to Brettt Braaten. Kerow later pled guilty to an amended information charging Vehicle Prowl in the Second Degree. CP 7-16, 17.

The plea agreement included an agreement to pay restitution. CP 22. At sentencing on May 16, 2014, the court ordered restitution to be determined at a future hearing and Kerow waived his presence. CP 24-26.

- 1 -

A restitution hearing took place on October 29, 2014, within the 180-day requirement.¹ Counsel for Mr. Kerow did not dispute the claim by United Services Automobile Association but did question a \$1,000 deductible owed to the named victim Brett Braaten because the insurance policy holder was Austin Wolff. 1RP 8. Counsel for Mr. Kerow did not doubt there was a connection between Brett Braaten and Austin Wolff but insisted there needed to be a connection established between the parties. 1RP 7-8.

Despite finding that there was documentation sufficient for restitution, the trial court requested the State to provide additional information establishing the relationship between Brett Braaten and Austin Wolff. 1RP 5, 10. The court continued the hearing *sua sponte* and asked the parties to find "...a date they agree on." 1RP 10.

Kerow and the State agreed upon November 18, 2014; a date that was 186 days after sentencing. At the November 18th

1509-13 Kerow COA

¹ RCW 9.94A.753(1) states "When restitution is ordered, the court shall determine the amount of restitution due at the sentencing hearing or within one hundred eighty days except as provided in subsection (7) of this section. The court may continue the hearing beyond the one hundred eighty days for good cause. The court shall then set a minimum monthly payment that the offender is required to make towards the restitution that is ordered. The court should take into consideration the total amount of the restitution owed, the offender's present, past, and future ability to pay, as well as any assets that the offender may have."

hearing, the State provided the trial court with a letter from the insurance policy holder explaining that Austin Wolff is Brett Braaten's father and that Wolff was paying Braaten's automobile insurance. 2RP 5-6. Counsel for Mr. Kerow then asserted that the court could not impose restitution because the time for determining restitution had expired, and counsel cited several cases supporting his position. 2RP 6-9.

The hearing was again continued and the trial court requested "case law" from counsel to determine whether the trial court lost "...jurisdiction." 2RP 11. On December 3, 2015, after receiving argument from the parties and reviewing the audio recording from the October 29, 2014 hearing, the trial court ordered restitution in the amount of \$4,641.71 to USAA (\$3,641.71) and Brett Braaten (\$1,000). 2RP 19; CP 31-32.

C. <u>ARGUMENT</u>

KEROW INVITED ERROR AS TO THE TIMELINESS OF RESTITUTION BY PROPOSING A HEARING DATE BEYOND THE STATUTORILY ALLOWED PERIOD.

Kerow contends that the trial court did not make a finding of "good cause" to continue his initial restitution hearing on October 29, 2014 and that the trial court was thus precluded from ordering

restitution. However Kerow's argument should be rejected because he invited any error as to the timing of the hearing because he proposed a date for the hearing.

A sentencing court's authority to order restitution is statutory. <u>State v. Griffith</u>, 164 Wn.2d 960, 965, 195 P.3d 506 (2008). The State is obligated to establish the amount of restitution by a preponderance of the evidence. <u>State v. Dennis</u>, 101 Wn. App. 223, 226, 6 P.3d 1173 (2000). Restitution is appropriate when the victim's injuries are causally related to the defendant's crime. <u>State</u> <u>v. Enstone</u>, 137 Wn.2d 675, 682, 974 P.2d 828 (1999). The time limit under statute is mandatory unless extended for good cause. <u>State v. Krall</u>, 125 Wn.2d 146, 148-49, 881 P. 2d 1040 (1994).

The doctrine of invited error "prohibits a party from setting up an error at trial and then complaining of it on appeal." <u>State v.</u> <u>Wakefield</u>, 130 Wn.2d 464, 475, 925 P.2d 183, citing <u>State v. Pam</u>, 101 Wn.2d 507, 511, 680 P.2d 762 (1984), <u>overruled on other</u> <u>grounds by State v. Olson</u>, 126 Wn.2d 315, 893 P.2d 629 (1995); <u>see State v. Pierson</u>, 105 Wn.App. 160, 167, 18 P.3d 1154 (2001) (error invited where defendant agreed to amount of restitution owed but objected to entry of order based on timeliness; restitution

1509-13 Kerow COA

- 4 -

order valid because determination was made within 180-day requirement).

에 소송

Kerow agreed to the amount claimed, and did not dispute the property lost or its causal connection to his conduct. 1RP 8. The trial court continued Kerow's hearing to address one issue only, the relationship between Braaten and Wolff. 1RP 10. Whether the trial court found "good cause" to continue is immaterial because Kerow invited error by proposing a date beyond 180 days.

Kerow relies upon <u>State v. Granthum</u>, 174 Wn. App. 399, 919 P.3d 21 (2013), a recent Division II decision, which found that a trial court must make express findings of good cause to continue beyond the 180 day requirement, and that agreement by a defendant or his attorney to a subsequent date does not constitute waiver. <u>Id.</u> at 406.

In <u>Granthum</u>, counsel for the defendant motioned to revoke Granthum's previous waiver of appearance and then submitted a withdrawal as counsel. <u>Id.</u> at 401. After granting the requested motions, the court remarked that the next date for restitution was "not going to be appropriate" and continued the hearing for an additional three weeks to allow new counsel adequate time. Based on an incorrect calculation, the hearing was set a week beyond the

- 5 -

1509-13 Kerow COA

180-day requirement. <u>Id.</u> After additional continuances, Granthum objected.

작 비율

Unlike Granthum, Kerow had entered a plea agreement to pay restitution. There was an amount determined at his initial hearing which was not disputed. Furthermore, the trial court did not propose a hearing date to which Kerow merely acquiesced. Rather Kerow and the prosecutor by agreement *proposed* hearing date which was beyond 180 days. Proposing a date to determine restitution is different from simply agreeing to a date set by the court. The trial court was entitled to rely on the date proposed by Kerow. Indeed, counsel have a duty of candor to the court, and counsel may not propose a date he knows will be a legal futility. Clearly, Kerow invited the error he now claims. To permit him to challenge on appeal the timing of the restitution hearing when he controlled the timing, would allow defendants to pursue gamesmanship and purposely evade their agreed upon restitution obligations and avoid the purpose for which the restitution statute was intended.

Kerow relies upon <u>State v. Tetreault</u>, 99 Wn. App. 435, 998 P.2d 330, <u>review denied</u>, 141 Wn.2d. 1015, 10 P.3d 1072 (2000), <u>State v. Johnson</u>, 96 Wn. App 813, 981 P.2d 25 (1999) and <u>State</u>

- 6 -

1509-13 Kerow COA

한 비행

<u>v. Moen</u>, 129 Wn.2d. 535, 919 P.2d 69 (1996) to argue that his hearing was untimely. In <u>Tetreault</u>, a restitution hearing, set prior to the 180-day requirement, was struck by the State because they were unable to obtain the insurer's Kerow did not dispute the property lost or its causal condocumentation of expenses. Restitution was denied when State later attempted to seek restitution beyond 180 days. <u>Id.</u> at 436.

and the second s

Here, the State was prepared to proceed within the required time and all necessary information was presented to the court at that time. In <u>Johnson</u>, a restitution hearing was not set as ordered within 30 days. Id. at 815. Johnson remained silent until his restitution hearing 235 days later. <u>Id.</u> In <u>Moen</u>, the court held that waiver was not found because there had been no hearing at all, and counsel for Moen had signed an order but only as to copy received and notice of presentation waived. <u>Id.</u> at 540.

Kerow's circumstances are distinguishable from each of these cases. First, in none of the above cases did the defendant propose a date to the court that was outside the statutory time limits. Moreover, in this case, a restitution hearing was set within the 180-day statutory requirement and the trial court made clear, on

- 7 -

1509-13 Kerow COA

the record, its intention to order restitution and the reasons to support good cause to continue the hearing. RP 10.

The purpose of the restitution statute is not finality but rehabilitation. <u>State v. Barr</u>, 99 Wn.2d 75, 79, 658 P.2d 1247 (1983). When interpreting the State's restitution statutes, the Court of Appeals recognizes that there were intended to require the defendant to face the consequences of his or her criminal conduct. <u>State v. Davison</u>, 116 Wn.2d 917, 922, 809 P.2d 1374 (1991). Kerow agreed to pay restitution as part of his plea agreement and there was no dispute as to the amount owed or property lost. He should not be permitted to mislead the sentencing court into scuttling its efforts to fulfill the statutory mandate by proposing a self-defeating hearing date.

D. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

34 【読む

Kerow proposed the date on which his restitution hearing should be held; he cannot claim now that the date was erroneously set. The docrine of invited error bars review of this claim

- 8 -

DATED this $2\mathcal{B}$ day of September, 2015.

Respectfully submitted,

DANIEL T. SATTERBERG

King County Prosecuting Attorney

By: <u>4</u>

PHILIP SAMCHEZ, WSBA #41242 Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Attorneys for Respondent Office WSBA #91002